
PUBLIC NOTICE 

North Valley Public Library Board of Trustees Meeting 
208 Main Street, Stevensville, MT 59870 

Wednesday, July 21, 2021 at 3pm 
Meetings are open to the public.   

Community Room in-person. 

 

Agenda 

• Call to Order/Roll Call 

• Guests 

• Public Comment1 
• Approval of Minutes 
• Finances 

 Statement of Revenue – Budget vs. Actual 
 Statement of Expenditure – Budget vs. Actual 
 Cash Report 

• New Business 
 Budget the following: 

• Black Mountain Cloud hosting? 
• Conference? 
• Personnel Perks 

• Dental? 
• Vision? 
• Life? 

• Ongoing & Unfinished Business 
 Improving the culture at the library workshop 
 Community feedback library survey 

 Building plans & discussion  

 Covid related issues & policies   
• Public Comment 

• Board/Director Announcements & Comments 

• Adjournment 
  

                                                           
1 If you are a member of the public and are unable to attend the Board meetings, the Board would still like to hear from you.  Please 

email the Director at denisea@northvalleylibrary.org or you can email board members directly. A link to Trustee contact information 
can be found on our website at northvalleylibrary.org/board—information. 
 



North Valley Public Library 
Minutes Board of Trustees Meeting 
Wednesday, July 21, 2021 at 3 p.m. 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 
The meeting was called to order at 3:03 p.m. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Victoria Howell, Chair 
Caitlin Dunn, Vice Chair 
Leon Theroux 
Dianne Snedigar (attended via phone) 
 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 
Kim Tiplady 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Denise Ard, Director and Melanie Carroll, Manager 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
GUESTS 
None 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Dianne made a motion to approve the minutes from the June 16th meeting and Leon seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
FINANCES 
Victoria asked if Denise had anything she wanted to point out to the board regarding this month’s financials. Denise 
commented that they received the last tax check and that everything looked pretty good overall. Leon had a 
question regarding the Revenue report. He was wondering why one of the line items was 184% over. Denise replied 
that this was the first year that the board had asked her to separate fines into two separate categories: 
lost/damaged and overdue. She underestimated the amount and this caused an overage. She commented that this 
line will most likely always be over as she is never going to be able to accurately guess the amount of lost/damaged 
versus overdue fines that the library collects. Caitlin said that it is always good to see more in an estimate in 
revenue than less. She commented that it looks the same in the miscellaneous line which is great news as it means 
we received more in donations that we expected.  
 
Denise commented that we spent 85% of what was budgeted on the Expenditure report. Leon had a question 
regarding the high percentage in the line item on legal notices and that we spent more than budgeted. Victoria said 
that it includes the notices for the RFP/RFQ. Denise agreed saying that they put the notices in the paper and also 
had several background checks this year which affected it. Leon asked if an outside organization performs the 
background checks. Denise said yes, as the library cannot perform national background checks.  
 
Victoria asked if there were any more questions or comments. Denise commented that this is not the final report as 
some bills were still trickling in. 
 
Caitlin made a motion to pass the financial report with Dianne seconding the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
 



NEW BUSINESS 
Budget 
Victoria said that Denise had requested that the board consider adding some new items to the budget for this fiscal 
year. She commented that she took a look at the Black Mountain cloud service and that it looks reasonable. Denise 
said that it costs $700 a year and every year will see an increase, but it would provide the library with an additional 
backup resource that they would not have to maintain or troubleshoot. They should be prepared and in the event 
of another pandemic, the library would still be able to access all the financial reports off-site. Dianne commented 
that the Bank went to a cloud based system a few years ago and it works well and that it may solve the IT issues the 
library has. Denise commented that for Black Mountain, it definitely would, but they would still have the other 
issues as Black Mountain does not support those processes. Leon asked if it would affect the collections budget. 
Victoria said that the amount is very small to be impactful to the collection budget. Denise also said that the library 
does not have the room necessary to store any more materials if they increased the collection budget instead of 
purchasing the software. Caitlin said it seemed worth it.  
 
Caitlin made a motion to add the BMS cloud hosting to the library’s budget for the 2021-2022 fiscal year and Leon 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Dianne asked if Black Mountain could provide backup for the rest of the library’s needs and if there was a way to 
move the library to the cloud for everything else. Denise responded that they couldn’t through Black Mountain, it 
was just a financial software company but they were looking into other solutions.  
 
Conference 
Denise said that she would like to attend the ARSL conference in October virtually and wanted to add it to the 
budget. She would like to attend from home and the conference is for 3 days. 
 
Caitlin made a motion to have Denise attend the conference virtually from home and Dianne seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Personnel Perks 
Victoria asked Denise to walk the board through the personnel perks she had researched. Denise said that she 
noticed other libraries offering their employees dental, vision, and life insurance and thought it might be a good 
idea for employee retention. She reached out to the insurance broker to see what types of plans were available and 
believed the cost to be worth it for the library. Victoria asked what the details of the plans were as sometimes 
brokers oversell the plan which turns out to be a rip-off. She liked the idea, but wanted to make sure it had real 
value for the employees. She asked how it would affect the budget. Denise responded that they usually have money 
left over at the end of the year that gets funneled into the building fund. She also said that because of turnover and 
despite the library giving raises, they are not spending that much per year. So adding these personnel perks does 
not really affect the budget. Leon said that he knows Denise is concerned with retaining people, and while we have 
been pretty aware of giving them raises, some staff are concerned about insurance. Adding dental or vision might 
be enough to convince them to stay. Caitlin asked if they can get more information on the plans to make sure that 
they are of value to the employees. Denise was wondering if she should add this to the budget. Victoria said that 
she believes they are leaning towards yes, but they would need a motion.  
 
Caitlin makes a motion to approve a dental, vision, and life insurance plans with the caveat that Denise checks to 
make sure that they are the best plans available for up to $2500/year. Leon seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously 

 
ONGOING & UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Improving the culture at the library workshop 
As a follow-up to last month’s discussion improving the library culture, Victoria and Denise met with the Tamarack 
presenters to see if they would be interesting in coming to the library. Leon said he liked the idea of getting some 
input from the staff members and then asked if the library would have to close for the day. Denise said that she 
recommends accepting the proposal and closing the library for the day. It would be mandatory for staff and part-



timers would get the option of extra pay or a different day off that pay period. Full-time staff could either make up 
the time or take sick/personal time. Caitlin asked what day of the week it would be. Denise said Thursday and she 
had given the staff a choice of the two dates and they chose the 30th of September. Victoria asked if the board 
members would be able to attend as this was also for them. Caitlin said she would try.  
 
Leon made a motion to accept the presentation proposal and close the library for the day of the training on 
September 30. Dianne seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Community feedback library survey 
Leon asked what the timeframe was for the survey to go live. Denise said that the board would have to approve the 
draft and also decide how they wanted to distribute it. She suggests putting it in the Bitterroot Star with a northern 
distribution. Leon suggests that they also put it on the website. Denise said they would have a link on the site as 
well as a paper copy at the front desk. Victoria directed the board’s attention to question 7 and wanted to make 
sure that the question wasn’t leading the public to make a decision. It was decided to add additional lines to cover 
all options. Leon asked if it was easier to print the insert at the library or at the Star. Victoria said it would be 
cheaper at the library.  
 
Caitlin made a motion to proceed with the survey after the changes were implemented and to insert the survey in 
the Bitterroot Star. Dianne seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Building plans & discussion 
Victoria said she had a talk with Bob Thomas from the Community Foundation. She said that their board does not 
meet, but the committee could meet with them. She said last month we focused on property ownership and she 
brought the issue up with Bob. He said that a legal expert would have to be consulted to see if it was an option. She 
got the impression that it would be a condo-type situation where the library owns the building, but not the land. 
Dianne said a leasehold agreement. Caitlin said she didn’t know if the meeting was necessary yet as the PAR hasn’t 
being completed and they do not know they are even going to build. Denise said that the more options there are, 
the more expensive the PAR is. If we know that they will not sell the land to the library, then based off last month’s 
conversation, it was not worth it to put the option on the PAR. Victoria said that she didn’t think that was necessary 
to do and that everyone has a different understanding of the PAR. Denise said that if the board finds that they want 
to own the land and it’s a deal breaker then it doesn’t need to be included. Victoria said that it was not a deal 
breaker yet as they hadn’t made their decision. The current land option is not an absolute answer as Bob would 
have to consult with the Community Foundation. Denise said that the first step the board should take is a consensus 
on whether the board would be willing to not own the land the potential new building would sit on. Leon said that 
he felt that both he and Caitlin agreed that they needed to own the land. Victoria said she is unsure, but also leaning 
that way. Dianne said she would want more information before she commits to anything, but she could go either 
way. Victoria asked what the next step should be and what they needed to find out. Caitlin said she felt pretty 
strongly about the land ownership. Victoria said she would contact Bob and try to get a definitive answer.   
 
Caitlin wanted some clarification on the scope of the PAR. She believed that they were going to do a general cost-
analysis and not look at a predetermined location. Victoria said they would look at any land available and factor that 
in.  
 
Caitlin had a question on what it would take to include Florence in the library district. Denise said that the first step 
is talking to the lawyer at the county. Victoria asked if they should get a refresher on the subject as it had been a 
while. She remembered that she had called the county attorney who was supposed to research it and get back to 
her, but never did. She said it seemed like something they should pursue. 
 
COVID related issues & policies 
Victoria asked if anyone had anything to discuss regarding COVID policies. Melanie said the library had been getting 
questions on when the Community Room would be available for the public to use. Victoria asked the board if they 
should open up the room to the public. She said that Ravalli County has hardly any numbers. Leon was concerned 
by the Delta variant and said he would hate to open it up too early. Denise asked Dianne if the bank had opened up 



their room for rentals again. Dianne said that they had. The board decided to not change the policy at this time and 
to revisit in another month.  
 
Dianne left the meeting at 4:41 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
BOARD/DIRECTOR ANNOUCEMENTS & COMMENTS 
Denise said that the Rapp Family Foundation donated an electric standing desk, two book carts, and two short 
stools through a grant. The library also applied for the Annie MacLay Leffingwell Foundation Grant for four new 
entry way computers. She received a proposal from the cleaners to increase their monthly amount which she 
thought was fair and that would also be reflected in the budget.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:49 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Melanie Carroll 

  



Appendix A 
Black Mountain Software Quote  

 
  



 
  



 
  



Appendix B 

 


